
                        Charter Township of Lyon Planning Commission  October 8, 2007    Page 1 

Charter Township of Lyon 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Minutes 
October 8, 2007 

 

 

Approved:  November 12, 2007 

 

 

DATE:  October 8, 2007 

TIME:  7:00 p.m. 

PLACE: 58000 Grand River 

 

Call to Order:  Mr. Barber called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call: Mike Barber, Chairman 

  Michael Conflitti 

  John Hicks, Board Liaison 

  Laura James 

  Sean O’Neil 

  Carl Towne 

 

Absent:  Jim Hamilton 

 

Also Present: Philip Seymour, Township Attorney 

  Michele Aniol, Township Planner 

   

Guests:  6 

 

Ms. James made a motion to excuse Jim Hamilton’s absence due to a vacation.  Mr. Towne supported 

the motion.   

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes:  All 

    Nays:  None 

    

MOTION APPROVED 

 

           

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

Mr. Hicks made a motion to approve the October 8, 2007 agenda as submitted.  Mr. Towne supported 

the motion. 

 

 Voice Vote:  Ayes:  All 

    Nays:  None 

    

MOTION APPROVED 

 

 

 

 



                        Charter Township of Lyon Planning Commission  October 8, 2007    Page 2 

2. CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Ms. James made a motion to approve the Minutes of September 24, 2007 as submitted.  Mr. O’Neil 

supported the motion.  

 

Voice Vote:   Ayes:  All 

    Nays:  None    

MOTION APPROVED 

 

3. COMMENTS FROM PUBLIC ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS  

 

There was no one who wished to address the Commission. 

 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS – None 

 

 

5. OLD BUSINESS – None 

 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS  

                                                                                               

AP-07-24 Crossroads Community Church, plan review of proposed modular classroom additions, site 

located at 28300 Pontiac Trail. 

 

Representing Crossroads Community Church: J. Muzzi, Pastor of Crossroads Church 

 

Ms. Aniol reviewed the memo dated September 25, 2007 from McKenna Associates.  The following 

recommendations were made: 

 

1. Provide a concrete sidewalk to the classrooms from the parking lot. 

2. Provide the location and screening of the HVAC units. 

3. Obtain Engineering approval. 

4. Submit a revised plan that was signed and sealed. 

5.  The Unacceptable rating on the Architectural Design Evaluation form be resolved. 

 

Mr. Muzzi stated that they came in front of the Planning Commission and obtained Site Plan approval and they 

are currently building.  They have built as much as they were able to afford.  In order to build an attractive 

building they had to cut back on the square footage.  During the building phase an opportunity presented itself 

to obtain these portable classrooms, which they thought would help them in the short term until they could 

afford an additional phase.  In regards to the review from McKenna Associates he stated that one of things to 

consider was that the classrooms would be directly behind the building, they would place it on the property in 

such a way that it would not be that visible.  They would be willing to have a Removal Bond. 

 

Mr. Barber questioned how many classrooms were there?  Mr. Muzzi stated that there are 3 classrooms.  Mr. 

Barber questioned if this was 1,000 more square feet than what was originally set up for the classrooms?  Mr. 

Muzzi stated it would be a little bit more, some of it was hallway.  Mr. Barber questioned how many children 

would be attending?  Mr. Muzzi stated that on a Sunday they have between 40-50 children, it would primarily 

be occupied on Sundays and they would have youth groups in the evenings for church groups only.   

 

Mr. Towne stated that he had to go to school in a portable classroom and he found them to be dehumanizing 

and he did not think that they belonged in this Township.  Mr. Muzzi stated that he felt they have come a long 

way since then.  Mr. Towne stated that he didn’t think that they have and it was too bad that they haven’t.  Mr. 

Muzzi stated that it looks like a public school classroom.   



                        Charter Township of Lyon Planning Commission  October 8, 2007    Page 3 

Mr. Towne stated that he sees his point and he understands the cost and that they will be out in back, but a 

leopard would always be a leopard, it’s still a terrible building if they can’t see it, they have to go by the zoning 

and it states that the classroom should be regarded as a permanent structure and in his opinion it did not belong 

there.  

 

Mr. Conflitti asked if there was any landscaping planned for the back since there was a subdivision in the back.  

Mr. Muzzi stated that there was subdivision but it was far back. 

 

Mr. O’Neil questioned if the applicant would be willing to commit to a time table as well as the bond.  Mr. 

Muzzi stated yes, he felt 3-5 years would be feasible.  Mr. O’Neil stated that there was crushed limestone for 

the walkway and to him that would be good for a temporary situation, if they were talking 3 years, then they 

would want something more permanent.  If cost was a problem then the applicant could put in asphalt.  Mr. 

Muzzi stated that if they get an approval then they would put the concrete in.   

 

Ms. James questioned the Federal Religious Land Use Act.  Mr. Seymour stated that it did apply and it 

essentially says that a Township or municipality may not impose a substantial burden through land use 

regulations against a religious organization, unless the Township can show it had a substantial governmental 

interest for the burden and that the regulation was the least restrictive alternative.  Ms. James stated that she 

felt they could not really hold them to architectural guidelines because that was not health, safety or welfare.  

Mr. Seymour stated that he felt that they could impose some design criteria as long as it was the least 

restrictive way of doing it.   

 

Mr. Towne stated this was such a sub-standard building; he would not put his child in it.  Mr. Seymour stated 

that he may be correct but he would have to have the building inspector go out and say it was a substandard 

building and as a result of that the health/safety and welfare of those children are in danger.  There would need 

to be an expert in the field that says that.  

 

Mr. Barber stated that as far as the health and safety codes the Fire Marshall gives them a certificate of 

occupancy based on the building inspections.  The applicant agreed to build the permanent buildings, these are 

going to be temporary, they would remove them when they can afford to.  

 

Mr. Conflitti questioned the material that they would use for the skirting of the building?  Mr. Muzzi stated it 

was T-111.  Mr. Towne stated that material wasn’t allowed in the Township.  Mr. Muzzi stated a wood product 

could be used.  Mr. Conflitti stated that wood would rot over time and he wasn’t sure if that would be the best 

product to use. 

 

Ms. James questioned foundation plantings.  Mr. O’Neil stated that he would like to see the areas adjacent to 

the parking lot and the area where the walkway would go have landscaping.  Ms. James recommended dwarf 

barberry.  Mr. Muzzi agreed. 

 

Mr. Towne stated that the Township Engineer would need to approve the building, if the engineer turned it 

down then what would happen?  Ms. Aniol stated that the engineer would not turn down the building; it would 

be based on engineering standards.  Mr. Towne asked if the Building Official would look at it before it was on 

the site or would they wait until it was on the site?  Ms. Aniol stated that it would come in as one unit and 

would come with manufacturing specifications, the Building Official would do the same thing as he would 

with a temporary sales trailer in front of a development, they would need to meet the same standards. 

 

Mr. O’Neil questioned if it would require State of Michigan approval.  Ms. Aniol stated that he would have to 

ask to the Building Official, she did not know. Ms. Muzzi stated that these were used as school classrooms in 

Mt. Clemens school district, so it was approved by the State of Michigan.  Mt. Clemens enrollment has 

declined so they have no need for the classrooms any longer, they are 8 years old.  Mr. Barber stated that 

whether these meet building codes was up to the inspector.  



                        Charter Township of Lyon Planning Commission  October 8, 2007    Page 4 

Ms. Aniol asked for clarification on what skirting material would be used.  Mr. Towne stated metal skirting.  

Mr. Muzzi agreed.  Mr. O’Neil stated they would make it subject to the Building Official verifying that it was 

properly installed.   

 

Mr. Barber stated that they would need moving permits.  Mr. Muzzi stated that they have talked to a 

professional mover who does this for a living and had him look at the buildings and the site.  Mr. Conflitti 

questioned if the applicant had already purchased the buildings?  Mr. Muzzi stated that they were free.  

 

Mr. Barber stated that there was a wall pack on one of the buildings and that needed to be removed.  Mr. 

Muzzi stated it would be removed. 

 

Mr. O’Neil clarified that Mr. Muzzi had said 3-5 years was reasonable.  Mr. Muzzi stated yes, could they say 

3-5 years, not to exceed 5 years?  Mr. O’Neil stated that he would prefer to say not to exceed 5 years and if 

they get done before that time then they would get their bond back.  Ms. James suggested it should be 5 years 

from the date of occupancy. 

 

Mr. Conflitti questioned the screening of the HVAC units?  Mr. Muzzi stated that they would provide more 

screening than what was on the plan, they would follow the recommendation from McKenna Associates.   

 

Mr. O’Neil made a motion to approve AP-07-24 for Crossroads Community Church subject to the 

applicants satisfactorily addressing items 1-4 under the recommendation section of McKenna Associates 

letter dated September 25, 2007.  In addition, install skirting around the units that would meet or exceed 

Township standards to be approved in the field by the Building Official.  To install some shrubbery 

possibly, dwarf barberry, along the north side along the parking lot, the west side of the northern most 

building and the south side.  A Removal Bond to be placed that would ensure the removal of these 

temporary classrooms not to exceed 5 years from the date of occupancy.  The Removal Bond amount 

would be determined by the Building Official and the applicant.  The Building Official would approve 

the integrity or habitability of the structure prior to any occupancy being granted or taken place.  Mr. 

Conflitti supported the motion.   

 

The applicant was accepting of these conditions.  

 

Voice Vote:  Ayes: All 

   Nays: None 

 

MOTION APPROVED 

 

7. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. Barber adjourned the meeting at 7:40p.m.   

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

 

 

Kellie Angelosanto 

Recording Secretary 

 


